
 
 

TOWN BOARD AGENDA  
REGULAR MEETING 

(All items listed for discussion and possible action) 
 

Hybrid Meeting 

South Metro Fire Protection District Station #42 
7320 South Parker Road 

 
Thursday, November 3, 2022 

6:30 p.m. 
1. Call to Order 
 

2. Roll Call of Board Members 
 

3. Audience Participation Period (limit 4 minutes per speaker)  
 
4. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes – October 6, 2022  
 

5. For Possible Action 
a. Approval of Text Messaging Vendor--TextMyGov 
b. Approval of the Eighth Addendum For Services with Terracare  
c. Resolution 2022-07 Approving the Intergovernmental Agreement with the Board 

of County Commissioners of Arapahoe County  
 

6. For Discussion 
a. Ordinance 2022-02 Adding a Definition of Short-Term Rentals to Section 16-6-10 

of the Foxfield Municipal Code 
b. Master Plan Proposal from SafeBuilt 
c. Gate Tag Pilot Program for Chenango and Chapparal Residents 
d. MFSD Funds for Youth Programs 

 
7. Reports 

a. Correspondence 
b. Mayor 
c. Members of Town Board  
d. Staff  
 

8. Future Agenda Items 
 

9. Adjournment 
 

STUDY SESSION 2023 Proposed Budget 



   
  

MINUTES 
  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING  
  

October 6, 2022 
 
Call to Order/Roll Call  
The virtual meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. via Microsoft Teams.  
  
The following Trustees were present in person: Trustee Herold 
The following Trustees were present via Microsoft Teams: Mayor Jones, Trustee Cockrell 
Trustee Farreau, Trustee Goddard, Trustee Schultz and Trustee Thompson.  A quorum was 
present.  
  
Audience Participation  
 
None 
  
Consent Agenda  
Mayor Jones moved, seconded by Trustee Herold, to approve the following items on the 
Consent Agenda:  

a. Approval of Minutes – September 1, 2022  
  

The motion passed by unanimous roll call vote.    
  
For Possible Action  
Resolution 06-2022 A Resolution Revisiting A Traffic Control Gate Policy 
Town Administrator Proctor introduced the revised Policy.  Mayor Jones moved approve to 
Resolution 06-2022 A Resolution Adopting a Traffic Control Gate Policy and Trustee Herold 
seconded the motion.  The Motion passed by unanimous roll call.  

Approval of Text Messaging Vendor—TextMyGov 
Town Clerk Schmitz introduced a service proposal from TextMyGov.  The proposal 
encompasses services related to text messaging between the Town and the citizens.  After 
discussion, the Board agreed to discuss the proposal again once references have been 
validated. 
 
Reports  
Mayor  
Mayor Jones noted that the Town would not be sponsoring a Trunk or Treat event this year.  
Given that the large majority of participants in years past were not Town of Foxfield residents, 
the planning and sponsorship of the event will be done by the Our Lady of Loreto staff. 
 
Members of the Town Board  
Trustee Cockrell advised that the Metro Vision Regional Transportation Plan was updated to 
eliminate five plans related to lane widening.   
 



Trustee Farreau provided an update on the Carpool Pilot program:  to-date 7 tags have been 
issued related to 4 carpools. Additionally, Trustee Farreau mentioned that the Town should 
discuss getting remote access to gate information; the access would require internet 
connectivity. 
 
Trustee Goddard requested a review of cost-of-living increase in the proposed budget to align 
with current trends. 
  
Staff  
Town Administrator Proctor presented the potential for an ordinance to address short term 
rentals.  After discussion, it was agreed that an ordinance to ban short term rentals would be 
drafted and presented for future discussion. 
 
Town Clerk Schmitz noted that the Caselle cloud migration is complete.  Ms. Schmitz Also 
provided an update on the Carpool Pilot program:  to-date 7 tags have been issued related to 4 
carpools.  The Board agreed to keep the guidelines as written and will continue to monitor 
results. 
 
Ms Schmitz also noted that the Town received $7,222.68 related to the sales of the Denver 
Broncos.  The Metropolitan Football Stadium District (MFSD) issued payments to municipalities 
which are entitled to a one-time sharing amount.  The provision of use regarding the distribution 
requires the funds to be used on youth activity programs. 
Ms. Schmitz suggested some possible uses for the funds: 

 Open space horseshoe area 
 Open space disc golf 
 Open space kids picnic table 
 Open space small garden area where kids can plant herbs, etc--but someone would 

have to be willing to help run Saturday clinics 
 Children’s Book depository in the open space and put install wood stumps for  
 seats in the open space for a reading area 
 Playground 
 Astronomy classes 

The Board suggested getting feedback from the community. 

Lastly, Ms. Schmitz also informed the board of two audits.   The first is an audit for the CBI, 
related to background checks.  As part of the audit, Ms. Schmitz will be designated in several 
roles that are required (designated Agency Coordinator (TAC) and Local Agency Security 
Officer (LASO), Secure Document Delivery System (SDDS) Administrator, Primary Billing 
Contact). The Town will need to update several policies and procedures to abide but the strict 
use, retention and destruction and access requirements.   

The second audit is the annual CIRSA audit. 

Future Agenda Items:  
Master plan study session 
Textmygov feedback 
Arapahoe Road 
Draft short-term rental 
SEH punch list 
MFDS distribution follow-up 
Fencing on property on Chenago 
 



Adjournment  
Mayor Jones adjourned the meeting at 8:23 pm.  
 

 
______________________________________  

                                                                       Kathleen Schmitz, Town Clerk  
  
                    

                              
_________________________________________

   
Lisa Jones, Mayor   



                                                    Item #5a 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:    Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:   Kathleen Schmitz, Town Clerk 
 
DATE:    November 3, 2022   
 
RE:    Approval of Text Messaging Vendor‐‐TextMyGov 

 
DISCUSSION: 

Attached is the proposal from TextMyGov, a vendor offering a platform which is specifically 

designed for communication between the citizens and government agencies.  As follow‐up to 

the Board’s request to verify references, Staff sought feedback from various Colorado 

municipalities.  Included in Exhibit B are three responses for review.  Staff is seeking approval to 

move forward with onboarding the vendor and including the cost in the 2023 budget. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Exhibit A – TextMyGov Service Proposal 

Exhibit B – TextMyGov References 

 

 

 



 
  
 

 
  
 

 

 

 

     

 

TextMyGov 
P.O. Box 3784 
Logan, Utah 84323 
435-787-7222 
 

Partnership Proposal 

 

Introducing TextMyGov 

 

TextMyGov was developed to open lines of communication with local  

government agencies and citizens. The system works 24 hours a day and 

 easily connects with your website and other communication methods.  

Using the regular messaging app on any smartphone, the smart texting technology allows the citizen to ask 

questions and get immediate responses, find links to information on the agency’s website, address problems, 

report any issues and upload photos. 

According to the Pew Research Center, 97% of smartphone owners text regularly. 

The technology analysts at Compuware reported that 80 to 90% of all downloaded apps are only used once 

and then eventually deleted by users. 

 

TextMyGov Solutions:  
Communicate, Engage, Boost Website Traffic, Track, and Work 

  

 
Communicate 

TextMyGov uses smart texting technology to communicate with citizens. Local government agencies can 
answer questions, send links to their website, and provide details on garbage pickup, utility payments, city 

news, events, office hours, just to name a few. 

  

 
Engage 

TextMyGov uses smart texting technology to engage with citizens. Citizens can easily report issues to any 

department, such as potholes, drainage problems, tall grass, junk cars. The issue reporting function can be 
customized for each department and their most commonly reported items. Agencies can engage citizens and 

ask specific guided questions regarding location, address, street name, and more. If your goal is to engage 

with citizens and get smart valuable data- You need TextMyGov. 

  

Exhibit A



 
  
 

 
  
 

 

 
Boost Website Traffic 

TextMyGov uses smart texting technology to maximize a city's website. Citizens can text in keywords like 
festival, parking, ticketing, meeting, sporting event, etc. The smart texting technology can answer the 

question or send a link from the city’s website with additional information. Local government agencies 
spend thousands of dollars each year on their website. TextMyGov is the best way to benefit from that 

investment. If your goal is to benefit from your website investment- You need TextMyGov. 
  

 
Track 

TextMyGov uses smart texting technology to track and record all the information that is sent in. Agencies 

can track the cell phone number, date, and time of every request. If your agency wants to be compliant with 
FOIA- You need TextMyGov. 

  

 
Work 

Smart texting uses detailed information to track a citizen’s request or create a work order. Work orders and 
requests can be generated and completed. Smart texting allows you to easily collect information like name, 

location, street address, and allows the user to upload a photo. If your agency wants to track real requests 

and real work orders submitted by a real cell phone number- You need TextMyGov. 
 

Implementation 

 

Getting Started 
After the execution of the basic service agreement, a project manager will be assigned to assist the client 

through implementation. A local phone number will be obtained for use with TextMyGov. 

Configuration 

The project manager will work with the client to customize interactive responses, create automation flows, 

and keyword lists. Training will be provided on how to quickly create and edit data. 

Media Kit 

Advertising materials will be provided to the client, including an infographic for the website and 

downloadable flyer for social media and other communication methods used by the agency. 

Unlimited Training and Support 
After initial implementation and training, unlimited on-going support is included. Our experts are available 

M-F 6am-5pm MST. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  
 

 
  
 

 

Subscription Cost Breakdown 

 

This quote represents a subscription to TextMyGov with an annual recurring charge for a period of one year. 

The agreement is set to automatically renew on the date of this agreement, after year one. See below for 

package price and other details. 

Terms and conditions can be printed and attached as Exhibit A or viewed at www.TextMyGov.com/terms 

 

Prepared for:  
Kathleen Schmitz  
Foxfield, CO P.O. Box  
461450, Foxfield,  
CO 80046 

Prepared by: 
Jerica Jensen 
Account Executive  
P.O. Box 3784  
Logan, UT 84323 

 

Package Package Price Billing 

TextMyGov 
Package includes:   

● TextMyGov Web-Based Software 
● Local Phone Number 

● Short Code Number (for outgoing messages) 

● Unlimited Users 
● Unlimited Departments 

● Unlimited Support for Every User 
● 10 GB Managed online data storage 
● 25,000 Text Messages per year 

$3,000 Annual 

   

Implementation/Setup Fee $1,500 One Time 

   

Total (First Year): $4,500 First Year 

Total (Ongoing): $3,000 Annual 

 

Notes: 

1. This is a one-year contract. After the initial year, the contract can be canceled by providing 60-day written notice. 

2. After the initial one-year contract, the agreement will revert to a year to year. 

3. Customer is required to put TextMyGov widget on the Agency’s Web Home page. 

4. This agreement and pricing were provided at the customer’s request and are valid until November 1st, 2022. 

5. Customer is required to provide copy of W-9 

6. Invoices will be sent out January 1st, 2023. Terms of invoicing is net 30 days. 



 
  
 

 
  
 

 

 

TextMyGov provides additional applications and services that can be purchased as part of the TextMyGov solution. 

These can be added to the customer's annual* cost, upon request.  

Enhanced Media & Care Package – Marketing materials and expert 

implementation to promote and optimize TextMyGov, see us here for 

additional information-  https://textmygov.com/enhanced-media-care/  

  

Price based on 

Population 

Annual 

Additional Storage – Each unit of storage contains an additional 100 GB. 

  

$250 Annual 

Additional text messages – Additional text messages can be purchased at 

any time. ($750 for 100,000), ($550 for 50,000), ($300 for 25,000) 

  

Price based on 

amount of text 

messages 

Annual  

 

Agreement Confirmation 

  

 

Implementation Team Information    

Name:  

Title:  

Email:  

Office Phone:  

Cell Phone (Required):  

  

Implementation Team Information  

Name:  

Title:  

Email:  

Office Phone:  

Cell Phone (Required):  

    

Billing Information    

Billing Contact Name:  

Title:  

Email:  

Office Phone:  

Address:  



 
  
 

 
  
 

(Please attach copy of W-9 or Tax Exemption form. Must include FEIN #.)  

    

Agreement Signature      

Name:   

Title:   

Date:   

Signature:   

       

Widget Contact     

Name:  

Title:  

Email:  

Phone:   

      

(This person is responsible for placing the TextMyGov Widget (see options-https://support.textmygov.com/widget/ ) on 
the agency’s website within 60 days of the signature. The TextMyGov widget will remain on the agency's website for the 
duration of the agreement. This agreement was discounted $1000/annually so the agency understands that they are 
required to place and maintain the widget on the agency's website.) 

 

 

Twilio Contact Authorization  

 

 

Twilio Authorized Contacts 

Employee Name (1):                                                                                                    

Email:  

Phone Number: 

Job Position: 

Business Title: 

 

Employee Name (2):                                                                                                    

Email:  

Phone Number:                                                                                                 

Job Position: 

Business Title: 

 

 

       I confirm that my nominated authorized representatives agree to be contacted by Twilio.

        

 



Exhibit B 

 

 

 

TextMyGov References 

     

         

Questions:  Town of Blue River  City of Delta  Town of Kremmling 

How was the 
onboarding 
process? 

Very quick and 
easy.  They walk you 
through it and make 
sure you have all the 
options you need. 
 

Very thorough. We had 
several virtual meetings with 
TextMyGov to make sure we 
understood how to use the 
tool. They were great. We 
have been live for several 
months and they are still 
quick to respond to our 
questions when they arise.  
 

Onboarding was relatively 
easy, you just sign up for 
one of their media packages 
and they assign one of their 
company members to 
assist with setup. 
 

Post onboarding do 
you have any 
feedback how much 
time is spent 
updating the 
platform? 

I don’t speed a lot of 
time on it.  Usually 
it’s if something 
comes up and I 
jump on and update 
it.  They also check 
in every 6 months. 
 

I check it a few times every 
day. Depending upon 
the question, it usually takes 
2‐3 minutes to respond if 
there isn't already an 
automated response in the 
system. I would say 20 
minutes or so every normal 
day. (more if we have a 
power outage or something 
like that.) 
 

It didn't take much time, 
maybe a month or two 
getting completely set up 
and up and running, they're 
extremely efficient. 
 

How does staff feel 
about the service? 

I’m the one that 
handles it so I’m 

happy😊 

It's a great way to 
communicate directly with 
residents. It is helpful for our 
Public Works department 
because of the connection to 
iWorQ. It streamlines work 
orders. We also have it set up 
so that we can send texts to 
employees who opt‐in about 
holidays and events. It is 
pretty popular and easy to 
opt‐in or opt‐out of.  
 

All the staff love it, it's a 
great way to send out 
info/alerts as well as get 
feedback from the town. 



Exhibit B 

Questions:  Town of Blue River  City of Delta  Town of Kremmling 

How do residents 
feel about the 
service? 

We are seeing an 
increase in usage 
and people getting 
used to it. 
 

The ones that use it seem to 
like it. We have used 2645 
messages since about April.  
 

The residents feel the same, 
unfortunately we haven't 
marketed it around town 
enough to have as high of a 
user volume as we would 
prefer just yet. 
 

Any lessons learned 
that you wish to 
share? 

I would just outline 
all the possible uses 
you would want 
with it and then 
marketing it to the 
residents.  I’m 
working on a new 
approach for uses 
that I hope will 
bump my outreach 
numbers up. 

None 
 

Be prepared and market 
more so that you have more 
community 
members who are aware 
and using the platform, 
overall it's been great and 
easy to use and the staff 
member they assigned to 
help us has been 
extremely helpful and very 
flexible with his time in 
responding to us about 
issues or questions. 
 

 

 

 

 



    Item # 5b 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:    Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:   Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:    November 3, 2022   
 
RE:    Eighth Addendum to Agreement for Services with Terracare Associates 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
On March 20, 2015, the Town of Foxfield entered into an Agreement for Services with Terracare 

Associates.  Attached for approval is the Eighth Addendum to the Agreement for Services with 

Terracare that will be effective until December 31, 2023.  This increase is approximately 10% 

from the 2022 rates.  

SUGGESTED MOTION: 

“I move to approve the Eighth Addendum and 2023 pricing agreement with Terracare 

Associates.” 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Exhibit A:  Eighth Addendum to Agreement for Services with Terracare Associates 
Exhibit B:  Terracare 2023 Pricing 
 
 

 

 



 

  

 
 

EIGHTH ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
  
 
  THIS EIGHTH ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES is made and entered into 
this day of ______________, 2022, by and between the Town of Foxfield, State of Colorado (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Town") and Terracare Associates, (the "Contractor").   
  

RECITALS: 
 

A. On March 20, 2015, the Town and Contractor entered into an Agreement for Services (the 
“Agreement”).  

 
B. The parties desire to authorize an extension of this Agreement and the 2023 pricing 

approved in this Eighth Addendum until December 31, 2023.  
 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed that for the consideration hereinafter set forth, that 
Contractor shall continue to provide services to the Town as provide in the 2015 Agreement and 
2023 pricing in the Seventh Addendum. 
 
1. Contractor shall continue to provide the services defined in Attachment A for a total 

contract price of $69,672.77 in 2023. The pricing attachment contains a provision for 
Winter Watering of all spruce and pine trees in the amount of $1,358.80 and snow removal 
services as needed. 

   
 2. The original Agreement is in full force and effect and is hereby ratified by the Town and 

the Contractor.   
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto each herewith subscribe the same in duplicate.  
  
 

TOWN OF FOXFIELD, COLORADO  
    
 

By:  ___________________________________  
                              Lisa Jones, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kathleen Schmitz, Town Clerk  
          
  

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text



 

  

 
 
 
CONTRACTOR 
      

By: ________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF    ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was subscribed, sworn to and acknowledged before me this _____ day of 

____________________, 2021, by ____________________________ as _______________________ 

of  __________________________________. 

 

My commission expires: 
 
(S E A L)       ____________________________________ 

Notary Public 
 

clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text























CERTIFICATEOFLIABILITYINSURANCE DATE(MM/DD/YYYY) 

1/20/20165/16/2016
THISCERTIFICATEISISSUEDASAMATTEROFINFORMATIONONLYANDCONFERSNORIGHTSUPONTHECERTIFICATEHOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATEDOESNOTAFFIRMATIVELYORNEGATIVELYAMEND, EXTENDORALTERTHECOVERAGEAFFORDEDBYTHEPOLICIES
BELOW.THISCERTIFICATEOFINSURANCEDOESNOTCONSTITUTEACONTRACTBETWEENTHEISSUINGINSURER( S),AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVEORPRODUCER, ANDTHECERTIFICATEHOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: IfthecertificateholderisanADDITIONALINSURED, thepolicy( ies)mustbeendorsed. IfSUBROGATIONISWAIVED, subjectto
thetermsandconditionsofthepolicy, certainpoliciesmayrequireanendorsement. Astatementonthiscertificatedoesnotconferrightstothe
certificateholderinlieuofsuchendorsement( s). 

CONTACTPRODUCER LOCKTONCOMPANIES NAME: 
5847SANFELIPE,SUITE320 PHONEFAX

A/C,No,Ext):( A/C,No): 
HOUSTONTX77057 E-MAIL
866-260-3538 ADDRESS: 

INSURER( S)AFFORDINGCOVERAGENAIC# 

16535ZurichAmericanInsuranceCompanyINSURERA: 
INSURED TERRACAREASSOCIATES, LLC 16691GreatAmericanInsuranceCompanyINSURERB: 

8201SOUTHPARKLANE,SUITE1101317255 INSURERC: LITTLETONCO80120
INSURERD: 

INSURERE: 

INSURERF: 

DIV26213855109XXXXXXXCOVERAGESCERTIFICATENUMBER: REVISIONNUMBER: 
THISISTOCERTIFYTHATTHEPOLICIESOFINSURANCELISTEDBELOWHAVEBEENISSUEDTOTHEINSUREDNAMEDABOVEFORTHEPOLICYPERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDINGANYREQUIREMENT, TERMORCONDITIONOFANYCONTRACTOROTHERDOCUMENTWITHRESPECTTOWHICHTHIS
CERTIFICATEMAYBEISSUEDORMAYPERTAIN, THEINSURANCEAFFORDEDBYTHEPOLICIESDESCRIBEDHEREINISSUBJECTTOALLTHETERMS, 
EXCLUSIONSANDCONDITIONSOFSUCHPOLICIES. LIMITSSHOWNMAYHAVEBEENREDUCEDBYPAIDCLAIMS. 

INSRPOLICYEFFPOLICYEXPADDLSUBR
TYPEOFINSURANCEPOLICYNUMBERLIMITSLTR( MM/DD/YYYY)( MM/DD/YYYY) INSDWVD

1,000,000COMMERCIALGENERALLIABILITYAGLO0117282-005/16/20155/16/2016XYY EACHOCCURRENCE
DAMAGETORENTED 300,000CLAIMS-MADEOCCURX PREMISES( Eaoccurrence)$ 

10,000MEDEXP(Anyoneperson) 

1,000,000PERSONAL& ADVINJURY$ 

2,000,000GEN'LAGGREGATELIMITAPPLIESPER: GENERALAGGREGATE$ 
PRO- XX 2,000,000POLICYLOCJECTPRODUCTS- COMP/OPAGG$ 

OTHER$ 
COMBINEDSINGLELIMIT 1,000,000YYAUTOMOBILELIABILITYABAP0117281-005/16/20155/16/2016 Eaaccident) 

X XXXXXXXBODILYINJURY( Perperson)$ ANYAUTO
ALLOWNEDSCHEDULED XXXXXXXBODILYINJURY( Peraccident)$ AUTOSAUTOS

NON-OWNEDPROPERTYDAMAGEXXXXXXXXXHIREDAUTOS AUTOS( Peraccident) 

XXXXXXX
XX10,000,000YYUMBRELLALIABBTUU0332721-065/16/20155/16/2016 EACHOCCURRENCEOCCUR

10,000,000EXCESSLIAB CLAIMS-MADEAGGREGATE

XXXXXXXX10,000DEDRETENTION$ 
WORKERSCOMPENSATION PER OTH- XYAWC0117283-005/16/20155/16/2016 STATUTEANDEMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ERY/N

1,000,000ANYPROPRIETOR/ PARTNER/ EXECUTIVE E.L.EACHACCIDENTN$ N/AOFFICER/ MEMBEREXCLUDED? 

1,000,000MandatoryinNH) E.L.DISEASE- EAEMPLOYEE
Ifyes,describeunder

1,000,000DESCRIPTIONOFOPERATIONSbelow E.L.DISEASE- POLICYLIMIT

DESCRIPTIONOFOPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES( AttachACORD101, AdditionalRemarksSchedule, maybeattachedifmorespaceisrequired) 
BLANKETWAIVEROFSUBROGATIONISGRANTEDINFAVOROFCERTIFICATEHOLDERONALLPOLICIESWHEREANDTOTHEEXTENT
REQUIREDBYWRITTENCONTRACTWHEREPERMISSIBLEBYLAW. CERTIFICATEHOLDERISNAMEDASANADDITIONALINSURED
EXCEPTFORWORKERS’ COMP/EL)WHEREREQUIREDBYWRITTENCONTRACT. 

CERTIFICATEHOLDERCANCELLATION

SHOULDANYOFTHEABOVEDESCRIBEDPOLICIESBECANCELLEDBEFORE
THEEXPIRATIONDATETHEREOF, NOTICEWILLBEDELIVEREDIN
ACCORDANCEWITHTHEPOLICYPROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZEDREPRESENTATIVE13855109

TownofFoxfield
P.O.Box461450
FoxfieldCO80046

ACORD25(2014/01)©1988-2014ACORDCORPORATION. Allrightsreserved
TheACORDnameandlogoareregisteredmarksofACORD



clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text



clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B



                                                    Item #5c 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:    Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:   Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:    November 3, 2022   
 
RE:  Resolution 2022‐07 Approving the Intergovernmental Agreement with the Board 

of County Commissioners of County of Arapahoe 

 
DISCUSSION: 

On August 2, 1994 Arapahoe County passed Resolution No. 1052‐94 that supported the 

incorporation of the Town of Foxfield with the understanding that the stretch of Arapahoe 

Road to be located within the proposed Town of Foxfield would have the following conditions: 

Arapahoe Road function as a major arterial, the County would control access to Arapahoe Road 

and Foxfield will provide land for improvements along Arapahoe Road that were detailed in the 

County Comprehensive Plan. The resolution also recommended that future IGAs be formed 

between the County and Foxfield to provide government services for Foxfield, including on 

Arapahoe Road.  

Since the passing of the resolution, the County has made the improvements along Arapahoe 

Road per the Comprehensive Plan and the Road is currently functioning as a major arterial. The 

improvements included widening to 6 lanes with transitions to the four‐lane section of 

Arapahoe Road on the eastern limits of this stretch of Arapahoe Road, and enhanced 

intersection improvements at Buckley and Waco. The County has also performed routine 

maintenance activities as it relates to asset management and traffic operations and continues 

to manage Arapahoe Road.  

IGA negotiations began in 2006 but stalled as Foxfield and the County could not come to a 

resolution. Recently, Arapahoe County Public Works and Development began worked on an IGA 

with Foxfield per the resolution to provide government services along Arapahoe Road and to 

memorialize the County’s agreements in maintaining the stretch of Arapahoe Road where it 



runs through the incorporated Foxfield. Over the last year, the Town and County have 

successfully negotiated terms.  

The proposed IGA with Arapahoe County addresses the following items:  

∙ Authorizes the County to maintain Arapahoe Road within Foxfield’s limits  

∙ County will continue to control access  

∙ Some HUTF funding will be claimed by the County  

∙ County will perform general maintenance activities as defined by the IGA  

∙ Separate IGAs will be formed for capital improvement projects  

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: 

“I move to approve Resolution 2022‐07 Approving the Intergovernmental Agreement with the 

Board of County Commissioners of Arapahoe County.” 

 

ATTACHMENT: 

Exhibit A:  Resolution 2022‐07 Approving the Intergovernmental Agreement with the Board of 

County Commissioners of Arapahoe County 

 

clerk
Typewritten Text



Exhibit A 

 

 
Trustee’s Resolution      Resolution No. 07, Series 2022 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF FOXFIELD 
APPROVING THE INTERGOVERMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS OF ARAPAHOE COUNTY 
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Colorado Constitution Article XIV, §18(2)(a), and Colorado 
Revised Statutes (CRS) §29-1-203, Colorado local governments may cooperate or contract with 
each other to provide any function, service, or facility lawfully authorized to each; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to establish agreement for the performance of certain 
maintenance activities on the segment of Arapahoe Road contemplated hereunder and to 
provide for funding for the cost of such road maintenance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Board believes it is in the best interest of the Town to approve the 
Intergovernmental Agreement with Arapahoe County to provide for certain road maintenance 
activities by the county on the segment of Arapahoe Road that is within the jurisdiction of the 
Town of Foxfield. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF THE TOWN OF FOXFIELD, 
COLORADO THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Board of Trustees hereby approves the Intergovernmental Agreement 
with Arapahoe County attached hereto as Attachment A and authorizes the Mayor to sign the 
IGA. 
    

Section 2. This Resolution shall be effective immediately. 
 

 
Introduced, passed and adopted at the 

regular meeting of Board of Trustees this _____ day 
of _____ 2022, by a vote of   ___ yes    __ no. 

 
 
                     
                 Lisa Jones, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Kathleen, Schmitz, Town Clerk   Corey Y. Hoffmann, City Attorney 



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
between 

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF ARAPAHOE 
and 

THE TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF FOXFIELD 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this _____ day of 
_________________, 2022, between the Board of County Commissioners of the County of 
Arapahoe (“County”) and the Trustees of the Town of Foxfield (“Foxfield” or “the Town”), 
collectively referred to herein as the “Parties.” 

Premises 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Colorado Constitution Article XIV, §18(2)(a), and Colorado Revised 
Statutes (CRS) §29-1-203, Colorado local governments may cooperate or contract with each 
other to provide any function, service, or facility lawfully authorized to each; and 

WHEREAS, this Agreement is intended to apply to that segment of Arapahoe Road from Parker 
Road to the eastern boundary of Foxfield (at the eastern section line of Section 28, Township 5 
South, Range 66 W), as more particularly described in Section 1.a of this Agreement, and 
referred to herein as “Arapahoe Road” or the “segment of Arapahoe Road”; said segment of 
Arapahoe Road is described and shown in the attached Exhibit A, which is incorporated herein 
by this reference; and  

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to establish agreement for the performance of certain 
maintenance activities on the segment of Arapahoe Road contemplated hereunder and to provide 
for funding for the cost of such road maintenance; and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement shall be used to address the provisions described in the Board of 
County Commissioners’ Resolution No. 1052-94 for the incorporation of the Town in 
accordance with CRS 31-2-101 and to serve as an IGA for road maintenance as contemplated in 
said Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, County has maintained some or all of the segment of Arapahoe Road described 
above at its expense since its improvement to an arterial; and 

WHEREAS, portions of the segment of Arapahoe Road mentioned in Resolution 1052-94 have 
been annexed by the City of Aurora and the City of Centennial and are under the jurisdiction of 
those Cities; and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement is in the interest of the health and safety of the residents of both 
County and Foxfield. 

Terms 

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text



2 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and premises 
contained herein, and the mutual benefits to be gained by performance, the Parties hereby agree 
as follows: 

1. Division of Responsibility.  The Parties agree to provide for the maintenance of 
Arapahoe Road as follows: 

a. The County agrees to maintain and control access, as provided herein, for the 
segment of Arapahoe Road within the jurisdiction of Foxfield from Parker Road 
to the eastern boundary of the Town. This segment generally includes the lanes 
within the Town boundary from Parker Road to South Buckley Road (where it 
intersects with Arapahoe Road from the south) and all eastbound lanes of 
Arapahoe Road from South Buckley to the eastern boundary of Foxfield (also 
known as eastern section line of Section 28, Township 5 South, Range 66 W) 
approximately 11.96 lane miles of Arapahoe Road.  See, attached Exhibit A. 

b. As used herein, maintenance is limited to the following: 

Snow Plowing and ice removal/per Arapahoe County policy 
Long line painting 
Durable markings 
Signs 
All signal related maintenance at S. Buckley Rd. and Waco 
Minor pothole repairs 
Sweeping 
 

c. Crack fill maintenance, asphalt overlay, any surface treatments, concrete, signal 
replacement, or any other activity or work not identified in 1.b. above are 
specifically excluded from the maintenance activities that the County will perform 
under this Agreement.  Any projects for these items may be performed through a 
separate IGA negotiated between the County and Foxfield for each such project.  
The County and Foxfield agree to cooperate in good faith with the planning for 
and funding of such projects.  For purposes of illustration and future planning for 
such work by the Parties, the County’s estimate for the anticipated cost of 
maintenance for overlays and crack sealing over the next ten years under this 1.c. 
is approximately $1,690,973. 
 

d. Responsibility for future road expansion or other capital improvement projects 
shall be as provided in Section 7 of this Agreement below.  

e. By approving this Agreement, Foxfield grants the County access to enter the 
segment of Arapahoe ROW to perform maintenance duties described hereunder 
and the County shall not be required to seek any further access permit or 
permission to perform the work. 

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text



3 

f. This Agreement does not include the lanes of Arapahoe Road that are located 
within the jurisdictions of the City of Aurora and the City of Centennial 
(collectively “the Cities”).  The County and the Cities may, nevertheless, elect to 
arrange through separate IGAs or other agreements to provide for performing 
maintenance activities for the lanes of Arapahoe Road that are within the 
jurisdictions of the Cities, as well as for sharing of maintenance on the lanes 
within Foxfield. Foxfield hereby authorizes Arapahoe County and the City of 
Aurora and the City of Centennial to perform the maintenance activities described 
in Section 1.b. above to the extent authorized in any such IGAs other agreements 
between or among the County and the Cities, and agrees to cooperate with the 
County and the Cities or City in the execution of such IGAs or agreements as 
necessary.       

2. Level of Maintenance and Budget Discretion.  County retains all discretion and 
decisional authority regarding the need for and level of maintenance to be performed 
under this Agreement and the amount of funding to be budgeted for such 
maintenance. 

3. Liability and Governmental Immunity.  The parties hereto do not waive any 
governmental immunity available under CRS 24-10-101, et seq. 

4. Funding for Maintenance Described in Paragraph 1.b. Above  

a. Highway User Trust Fund (HUTF)   The County shall be entitled to claim  the 
annual HUTF for lane miles attributed to the segment of Arapahoe Road within the 
jurisdiction of Foxfield for which the County is responsible for maintenance under 
Paragraph 1.b above from the State of Colorado.  Foxfield agrees to cooperate with 
the County in making such annual claims and agrees to execute any documents 
required by the State of Colorado in order for the County to claim the monies.  

b. Proportional Sharing of Certain Other Fees or Other Funds as will be collected and 
distributed to the Town from SB21-260. The Town agrees to allocate those revenues 
received by the Town from SB21-260, to the extent such funds include revenues 
attributable to the inclusion of Arapahoe Road within the corporate limits of the 
Town, to the maintenance activities described in Section 1, subsection c. of this 
Agreement.  

5. Right-of-Way and Easements.  The Parties agree to cooperate in securing any 
needed right-of-way or easements required within the other jurisdiction in order to 
provide for maintenance or as the Parties may agree are needed for a future capital 
road project. 

6. Permitting Within/Control of Right of Way.  County shall have the right under this 
Agreement to control access to the segment of Arapahoe Road and shall have final 
approval over all access, right-of-way, utility, and construction permits within said 
roadway as defined in Section 1.a. of this Agreement. 

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text



4 

a. Foxfield shall not issue a permit to any third-party for a new driveway, 
agricultural access, street cut, road or other access to this segment of Arapahoe 
Road without the County’s consent and approval.  Upon receipt of such 
application, in accordance with Paragraph 1.a. above, the application shall be sent 
to the County with a referral request, including all necessary and applicable 
supporting documentation (i.e., traffic studies, land use applications, plans, etc.). 
The County shall respond with either comments/concerns or recommendation for 
approval of the application.  Referral comments or recommendations for approval 
shall be sent within ten (10) working days from the date the referral was received.  
Once all information is satisfactory to County for approval, the County will 
approve the access permit request within ten (10) working days.  All 
comments/concerns must be addressed by the applicant prior to the issuance of 
the access permit by the County and prior to Building Permit issuance by the 
Town.  The access shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the most 
restrictive criteria of either the Colorado Department of Transportation Access 
and Design Standards or Arapahoe County Criteria.  The County as the 
jurisdiction responsible for the maintenance of the segment of Arapahoe Road 
shall have the authority to decide disputes concerning design and construction 
issues or standards.   

b. The Town will assure that the County’s referral comments are adequately 
addressed by the permit holder prior to issuance of the permit or approval of the 
development plan.  Referral comments or recommendation for approval shall be 
sent within ten (10) working days from the date the referral is received.  Access 
permits cannot be unreasonably withheld by the County. 

c. If a new access to Arapahoe Road is not constructed per the requirements of the 
Access Permit/Driveway Permit, the County reserves the right to physically 
remove said access/driveway between the fenceline and Arapahoe Road.  County 
will be responsible for approval inspection and acceptance of the access onto 
Arapahoe Road. 

d. In issuing street cut or other Right-of-Way or Utility Use and Construction 
permits for Arapahoe Road, the County will work cooperatively with the Town in 
reviewing and if appropriate approving applications for such permits for the 
segment of Arapahoe Road; including inspecting work performed under such 
permits and granting if appropriate final acceptance of work performed under 
such permits. 

e. For any proposed new access onto Arapahoe Road, the County will make 
decisions using the most restrictive design criteria and of either the Colorado 
Department of Transportation Access and Design standards or Arapahoe County 
criteria. and based on the traffic report of the development project, projected 
traffic volumes, accessing sight-distance criteria, and other safety considerations. 

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text



5 

f. In making access determinations for proposed new developments along Arapahoe 
Road, both Parties shall work cooperatively in reviewing and approving, if 
appropriate, access applications for proposed new developments onto Arapahoe 
Road, and in inspecting and granting, if appropriate, final acceptance of all work 
performed with respect to new development access onto Arapahoe Road. 

7. Capital Improvements.  The Parties agree to cooperate on any capital improvements 
along Arapahoe Road within the jurisdiction of the Town, and as long as the County 
has maintenance responsibility for any segment of Arapahoe Road within the Town’s 
jurisdiction, the County may after consultation with and input from the Town proceed 
to design and construct such capital improvements within the right of way as are 
necessary to meet the traffic demands.  The County will utilize professional 
engineering judgment to design and construct any such improvements.  Prior to 
designing and constructing such capital improvements, the County shall seek input 
from and consult with Town for its concurrence with the need for and the design of 
the improvement.  Funding for the improvements and specific provisions for the 
design and construction of such improvements shall be established by separate 
agreement between the Parties. 

8. Term of Agreement and Termination. 

a. The Effective Date of this Agreement shall commence from the date of execution 
by the final party to the Agreement. 

b. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for a period of five (5) years 
from such Effective Date unless terminated as provided herein. 

c. Thereafter, this Agreement shall automatically renew for subsequent periods of 
one (1) year after the initial term, unless, at least sixty (60) days prior to its 
termination, either party notifies the other party, in writing, of its decision not to 
renew the Agreement.   

d. This Agreement may also be terminated at any time by either of parties upon sixty 
(60) days advance written notice to the other party. 

e. In the event annexation from a municipality occurs along the unincorporated 
portion of Arapahoe Road as described in Exhibit A, the Agreement shall be 
terminated within 60 days of the final annexation. 

9. Successors and Assigns.  The Agreement shall be to the benefit of, and be binding 
upon, the Parties, their successors, and assigns. 

10. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  The benefits and burdens of the Agreement shall 
inure solely to the Parties.  There are no third-party beneficiaries of the Agreement. 

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text



6 

11. Applicable Law.  The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the law of the State of Colorado.  

12. Non-Appropriation/TABOR.  Pursuant to Section 29-1-110, C.R.S., as amended, 
financial obligations of County payable as set forth herein, after the current fiscal 
year, are contingent upon funds for that purpose being appropriated, budgeted and 
otherwise made available.  This Agreement may be terminated on January 1 of the 
first fiscal year for which funds are not appropriated.  County shall give advance 
written notice of such termination for non-appropriation as provided in this 
Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to be or shall be interpreted as 
creating a multi-fiscal year obligation within the meaning of Article X, Section 20 of 
the Colorado Constitution.   

13. Indemnification and Insurance.  To the extent allowed under the law of the State of 
Colorado, Foxfield shall indemnify and hold Arapahoe County, its elected officials, 
officers and employees harmless from and against any liability, claims, damages, 
injuries or death resulting from the performance of the maintenance activities 
described in this Agreement. Such indemnity obligation shall not apply to claims 
arising from willful and wanton or intentional misconduct in the performance of such 
maintenance services.   The Parties shall each maintain adequate insurance or self-
insurance to protect against any liability not covered by Governmental Immunity. 

14. Non-Waiver.  No waiver of any of the provisions of the Agreement shall be deemed 
to constitute a waiver of any other of the provisions of the Agreement, nor shall such 
waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided herein, nor 
shall the waiver of any default hereunder be deemed a waiver of any subsequent 
default hereunder. 

15. Severability.  Should any one or more provisions of the Agreement be determined to 
be illegal or unenforceable, all other provisions nevertheless shall remain effective; 
provided, however, the Parties shall forthwith enter into good faith negotiations and 
proceed with due diligence to draft such language that will achieve the original intent 
of the Parties hereto. 

16. Assignability.  Neither Party shall assign its rights or delegate its duties hereunder 
without the prior written consent of the other Party. 

17. Liability of the Parties.  Except as may otherwise be provided herein, no Party shall 
have any obligation whatsoever to repay any debt, financial obligation, or liability of 
the other Party. 

18. Survival.  Each and every covenant, promise, or term contained in the Agreement 
shall not merge in any deed or other document executed by either or both Parties to 
affect the Agreement, but shall survive such instrument. 

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

clerk
Typewritten Text



7 

19. Headings for Convenience.  The headings, captions, and titles contained herein are 
for convenience and reference only and are not intended to enlarge or restrict the 
content thereof. 

20. Entire Agreement.  The Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 
Parties with respect to the matters addressed herein.  Any prior agreements, promises, 
negotiations, representations, or understandings not expressly set forth in the 
Agreement are of no force and effect.  The Agreement may not be modified except in 
writing executed by both Parties. 

21. Notice of Communications.  All notice required under the Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be hand-delivered or sent by registered or certified mail, return-
receipt requested, postage prepaid, to the addresses of the parties herein set forth.  All 
notices so given shall be considered effective seventy-two (72) hours after deposit in 
the United States Postal Service mail with the proper address as set forth below.  
Either Party by notice so given may change the address to which future notices shall 
be sent. [what about emailed notice???] 

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
  Attachment A

clerk
Typewritten Text



8 

Notice to Arapahoe County: 

Chairman 
Board of County Commissioners 
Arapahoe County 
5334 South Prince Street 
Littleton, Colorado  80126-0001 

With copy to: 

Arapahoe County Attorney 
Arapahoe County 
5334 South Prince Street 
Littleton, Colorado  80126-0001 

and 

Director 
Department of Public Works and Development 
Arapahoe County 
6924 South Lima Street 
Centennial, Colorado  80112 

Notice to Town of Foxfield: 

Mayor 
Town Trustees 
Town of Foxfield 
P.O. Box 461450 
Foxfield, CO 80046 

 

With copy to: 

Corey Y. Hoffmann, Esq. 
Town of Foxfield Attorney 
Hoffmann, Parker, Wilson  & Carberry, PC 
511 16th Street, Suite 610 
Denver, Colorado 80202  

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement effective as of the 
day and year first above written: 

ARAPAHOE COUNTY, STATE OF COLORADO 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF ARAPHAOE: 

 
 
 
BY:   DATE:   

Bryan Weimer 
 Director, Arapahoe County Department 
 Of Public Works and Development 
 Pursuant to the Authority of Resolution No. ____. 

 
 

TOWN OF FOXFIELD, STATE OF COLORADO 
MAYOR AND TOWN TRUSTEES: 

 
 
 
BY:   DATE:   

Mayor 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
 
BY:   DATE:   

Clerk to the Trustees 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
BY:   DATE:   

Town of Foxfield Attorney 

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
 

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text



Start of  Arapahoe County Maintenance in Foxfield End of Arapahoe County Maintenance in Foxfield

Inset 1 E ARAPAHOE RD

S W
AC

O 
ST

E EASTER AVE

E DAVIES AVE

S PARKER RD

S O
LA

TH
E S

T

S B
UC

KL
EY

 R
D

S R
IC

HF
IE

LD
 S

T

S O
UR

AY
 W

AY

S O
UR

AY
 ST

S LEWISTON WAY

E COSTILLA AVE

RAMP

E CALEY AVEE WEAVER PL

S W
AL

DE
N W

AY

S N
OR

FO
LK

 S
T

S S
ED

AL
IA

 S
T

S P
ITK

IN
 ST

S S
AL

ID
A 

ST

S W
AL

DE
N 

ST

S A
ND

ES
 C

IR

S TELLURIDE ST

E BRIARWOOD CIR

E EUCLID AVE

S CHAMBERS WAY

E FAIR PL

S Y
AM

PA
 C

T

PRIVATE

E CALEY DR

S C
HA

PP
AR

AL
 C

IR
 W

S W
AC

O 
WA

Y

E EUCLID PL

S RIFLE ST

E DAVIES DR

E CALEY CIR

S Y
AM

PA
 ST

E CALEY PL

S RIFLE WAY

E EASTER CIR

E PEAKVIEW AVE

S Z
EN

O 
CT

E W
EAVER DR

E PEAKVIEW PL

E WEAVER AVE

E EASTER PL

E WEAVER LN

E BRIARWOOD PL

S SEDALIA ST

S T
EL

LU
RI

DE
 S

T

E CALEY CIR

E WEAVER PL

S B
UC

KL
EY

 R
D

E PEAKVIEW AVE

E WEAVER DR

E EUCLID AVE

S ZENO CT

E DAVIES AVE

RA
MP

RAMP

S R
IC

HF
IEL

D 
ST

E PEAKVIEW AVE

E CALEY AVE

RAMP

Sec 28 T5S R66W

Sec 21 T5S R66W
Sec 20 T5S R66W

Sec 29 T5S R66W

Exhibit A ¯

End of Foxfield Jurisdiction
Legend
Road Maintenance By

Foxfield (By Arapahoe County)
Arapahoe County
Aurora
Centennial

Jurisdiction
Unincorporated Arapahoe County
Foxfield

Centennial

DDD
DDDAurora

Street Centerlines

PLSS Section

Created by: Alexander Shoemaker, Arapahoe County R&B
10/6/2022

0 1,500 3,000750 Feet

Path: G:\DSIM\RDBRG\Administration\IGA-InterGovernmental Agreements\Arapahoe Road in Foxfield\ExhibitA_FoxfieldIGA_10_6_22.pdf

Inset 2 Inset 3 Inset 4 Inset 5

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text



Aurora

Foxfield (By Arapahoe County)

Centennial
RAMP

E ARAPAHOE RD

AC
CE

SS
S PARKER RD

S L
EW

IS
TO

N 
WA

Y
RAMP

Sec 20 T5S R66W

Sec 29 T5S R66W

Inset 1 ¯

Legend
Road Maintenance By

Arapahoe County
Aurora
Centennial
Foxfield (By Arapahoe County)

Street Centerlines

Created by: Alexander Shoemaker, Arapahoe County R&B
10/5/2022

0 280 560140 Feet

Path: G:\DSIM\RDBRG\Administration\IGA-InterGovernmental Agreements\Arapahoe Road in Foxfield\Inset1_FoxfieldIGA_10_5_22.pdf

Start of  Arapahoe County Maintenance in Foxfield

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



Foxfield (By Arapahoe County)
Centennial Arapahoe County

E ARAPAHOE RD
S O

LA
TH

E S
T

S B
UC

KL
EY

 R
D

Sec 20 T5S R66W

Sec 29 T5S R66W

Inset 2 ¯

Legend
Road Maintenance By

Arapahoe County
Aurora
Centennial
Foxfield (By Arapahoe County)

Street Centerlines

Created by: Alexander Shoemaker, Arapahoe County R&B
10/6/2022

0 240 480120 Feet

Path: G:\DSIM\RDBRG\Administration\IGA-InterGovernmental Agreements\Arapahoe Road in Foxfield\Inset2_FoxfieldIGA_10_6_22.pdf

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

clerk
Typewritten Text



Foxfield (By Arapahoe County)
Arapahoe County E ARAPAHOE RD

S P
ITK

IN
 ST

E EUCLID PL

S B
UC

KL
EY

 R
D

S R
IC

HF
IE

LD
 S

T

S OURAY WAY

S OURAY ST

S RICHFIE
LD

 ST

Sec 21 T5S R66W

Sec 28 T5S R66W

Inset 3 ¯

Legend
Road Maintenance By

Arapahoe County
Aurora
Centennial
Foxfield (By Arapahoe County)

Street Centerlines

Created by: Alexander Shoemaker, Arapahoe County R&B
10/6/2022

0 310 620155 Feet

Path: G:\DSIM\RDBRG\Administration\IGA-InterGovernmental Agreements\Arapahoe Road in Foxfield\Inset3_FoxfieldIGA_10_6_22.pdf

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

clerk
Typewritten Text



End of Arapahoe County Maintenance in Foxfield

Foxfield (By Arapahoe County)
Arapahoe County E ARAPAHOE RD

E EUCLID AVE
E EUCLID PL

S S
AL

ID
A 

ST

S S
ED

AL
IA

 S
T

S TE
LLURIDE ST

Sec 21 T5S R66W

Sec 28 T5S R66W

Inset 4 ¯

Legend
Road Maintenance By

Arapahoe County
Aurora
Centennial
Foxfield (By Arapahoe County)

Street Centerlines

Created by: Alexander Shoemaker, Arapahoe County R&B
10/6/2022

0 310 620155 Feet

Path: G:\DSIM\RDBRG\Administration\IGA-InterGovernmental Agreements\Arapahoe Road in Foxfield\Inset4_FoxfieldIGA_10_6_22.pdf

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

clerk
Typewritten Text



End of Arapahoe County Maintenance in Foxfield

Foxfield (By Arapahoe County)
Arapahoe County

S W
AC

O 
ST

E ARAPAHOE RD

E EUCLID PL

S W
AC

O 
WA

Y

S URAVAN CT

E EUCLID PL

Sec 28 T5S R66W

Sec 21 T5S R66W

Inset 5 ¯

Legend
Road Maintenance By

Arapahoe County
Aurora
Centennial
Foxfield (By Arapahoe County)

Street Centerlines

Created by: Alexander Shoemaker, Arapahoe County R&B
10/6/2022

0 310 620155 Feet

Path: G:\DSIM\RDBRG\Administration\IGA-InterGovernmental Agreements\Arapahoe Road in Foxfield\Inset5_FoxfieldIGA_10_6_22.pdf

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

clerk
Typewritten Text



    Item # 6a 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:   Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:    November 3, 2022 
 
RE:  Draft Ordinance Adding a Definition of Short‐Term Rentals to Section 16‐6‐10 of 

the Foxfield Municipal Code 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached for Board discussion is a draft Ordinance to add a definition of Short‐Term Rentals to 
16‐6‐10 of the Foxfield Municipal Code. 
 
This draft ordinance will accomplish banning Short‐Term Rentals (STR) because the use is not 
listed as a permitted use in any district, and there is language that any use not listed is not 
permitted.  Thus, adding a definition of STR clarifies the use was intentionally not listed nor part 
of any other listed use.  
 
ATTACHMENT: 
Exhibit A:  Draft Ordinance 2022‐02  
 



10/27/2022 
HTTPS://D.DOCS.LIVE.NET/63D8B8F846219921/00 TOWN OF FOXFIELD/00 MEETING PACKET/2022/11 NOVEMBER 2022/11-03-

2022/SHORT-TERM RENTALS ORDINANCE 110322.DOCX 

Trustee Bill No. 02 Introduced by Trustee  
Series of 2022 
Town of Foxfield 

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 16-6-10 OF THE 
FOXFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE BY THE ADDITION THERETO OF A 

DEFINITION OF TERM SHORT-TERM RENTALS 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
FOXFIELD, COLORADO: 

Section 1. Section 16-6-10 of the Town of Foxfield Municipal Code is amended by the 
addition thereto of the following definition to be inserted alphabetically and to read as follows: 

Short-term rental. A rental of any dwelling, in whole or in part, to any person(s) for 
transient use, other than (1) a permitted commercial accommodation, (2) ongoing month-
to-month tenancy granted to the same renter for the same dwelling, or (3) a house exchange 
for which there is no payment. Short-term rentals shall not be permitted in any zone district 
in the Town. 

Section 2. The Town Board of Trustees hereby finds, determines, and declares that this 
Ordinance is promulgated under the general police powers of the Town of Foxfield, that it is 
promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary 
for the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public convenience and welfare.  

Section 3. If any clause, sentence, paragraph, or part of this Ordinance or the application 
thereof to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be adjudged by a court of competent 
jurisdiction invalid, such judgment shall not affect application to other persons or circumstances. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after final publication. 

Adopted as Ordinance No. 02 Series of 2022, by the Board of Trustees of Foxfield, 
Colorado, and signed and approved by its Mayor or presiding officers this ___ day of 
___________, 2022. 

______________________________ 
Lisa Jones, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
___________________________________ 
Kathleen Schmitz, Town Clerk   Town Seal 
 

___________________________________ 
Corey Y. Hoffmann, Town Attorney 
(Approved as to Form) 

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text



                                                    Item #6b 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:    Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:   Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:    November 3, 2022   
 
RE:    SAFEbuilt Proposal for Master Plan Services 
 

DISCUSSION: 

Staff unfortunately has not been successful in getting DOLA and UCD to agree to working with 

the Town of Foxfield on the Master Plan update. The information I have been given is that 

DOLA is no longer supporting the low, to no cost option, of working with UCD because it is 

taking business away from consultants that provide this service.  Therefore, staff contacted our 

planning consultant, SafeBuilt, to see if they could assist the Town with this project. 

Attached is a proposal from SAFEbuilt to assist with the update of the Foxfield Master Plan.  The 

proposal outlines three different tiers of service. The tiers, which are detailed in Exhibit A, 

consist of basic cosmetic updates, administrative updates, and comprehensive updates. 

Staff intends to apply for a grant from DOLA for the Master Plan update and Land Use municipal 

code update.  The grant would require the Town to match 50% of the project cost.  Town 

Attorney Hoffmann has provided an estimate of $5,000 for the code update and if the Board 

chooses to work with SafeBuilt on the Master Plan update, choosing Tier 3 at $11,600, the total 

project cost is estimated at $16,600.  Foxfield would be responsible for $8,300.  ARP funds 

could be used for this cost. 

Staff is seeking direction from the Board on how they would like Staff to proceed. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Exhibit A – SAFEbuilt Master Plan update proposal 

 

 

 



                                                                                                                   Exhibit A 
 

Master Plan Update – Town of Foxfield SAFEbuilt Studio 
 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

MEMO 
 
To:    Karen Proctor, Town Administrator, Town of Foxfield 

 
From:    Travis Reynolds, Colorado Planning Manager, SAFEbuilt Studio 

 
Date:    10/25/2022 
 
Re:      Master Plan update proposal 
 
SAFEbuilt Studio is pleased to submit the following estimate for services to conduct an update to the existing 
Comprehensive Plan for the Town of Foxfield.  Travis Reynolds will be the Town’s client manager for this project.  
The proposed effort outlines three tiers of potential updates for the Town’s Master Plan.  The second and third 
tiers include additional activities and associated fees.   

 
Each cost associated with each tier should be considered “in addition” to the base cost of the initial “Cosmetic 

Refresh”. Additional activities and fees are outlined by “blue” cells in each table.    

Potential Master Plan Update Approaches 

1. Cosmetic Refresh.  This tier includes simple updates to the existing document, as adopted and amended, 
to include simple content updates, updates to the document’s formatting and layout, and a refresh of 
maps and images to reflect current information amended since the last formal amendment adoption in 
2008. 
 
It should be noted that, since the last adopted amendment, the Colorado Legislature adopted CO Rev. 
Stat. § 31‐23‐206 (2016) that requires municipalities to include an element that reflects the provision of 
recreational and tourism needs for residents of the municipality.  It is suggested that the Cosmetic Refresh 
include this additional content to comply with the updated regulations. 
 
Please see below for primary steps in this process and the anticipated time/costs associated:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 

 

  TOTAL:                 26‐36               $4,400.00 

 

Project Phase  Work hours General estimate

1. Review of the document and scoping 
with town staff 

6‐8 $800.00 

2. Changes to document format, 
grammatical errors, images, and maps 

14‐16 $1,600.00 

3. Inclusion of recreation and tourism 
content 

3‐4 $400.00 

4. Inclusion of policy documents 
adopted since 2008 

4‐6 $600.00 

5. Revisions as requested by town staff 2‐4 $400.00 

6. Presentation to Town Board for 
adoption 

4‐6 $600.00 



                                                                                                                   Exhibit A 
 

Master Plan Update – Town of Foxfield SAFEbuilt Studio 
 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

2. Administrative Refresh – This approach includes items outlined in #1 above, including more thorough 
updates to content, interviews with Town staff, Town Board Members, and other decision makers 
regarding future development issues the Town is facing.  *Please note that we suggest that we may want 
to circulate some form of simple survey to gauge public response to issues with this approach.       

 
Total – (Cosmetic Refresh + $2,800.00)                 60‐72         $7,200.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Phase  Work hours General estimate

1. Critical review of the document and 
scoping with town staff, including 
additional suggested content. 

12‐14  $1,400.00 

2. Changes to document format, 
grammatical errors, images, and maps 

14‐16  $1,600.00 

3. Inclusion of recreation and tourism 
content 

3‐4  $400.00 

4. Inclusion of policy documents 
adopted since 2008 

4‐6  $600.00 

5. In‐depth interviews with staff and 
decision makers regarding  
community issues and additional 
content inclusion. *  

10‐12  $1,200.00 

6. Draft review with staff and Board  8‐10  $1,000.00 

7. Revisions as requested by town staff  2‐4  $400.00 

8. Presentation to Town Board for 
adoption 

4‐6  $600.00 



                                                                                                                   Exhibit A 
 

Master Plan Update – Town of Foxfield SAFEbuilt Studio 
 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

3. Public refresh – includes all of #2 above, plus a limited number of public meetings or other means of 
gaining input from the residents of the Town.   As mentioned in our discussions, approaches #1 & #2 
above often end up requiring #3.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Total – (Administrative Refresh + $4,400.00)         93‐116            $11,600.00 

 
 

 
 

 

Project Phase  Work hours General estimate

1. Critical review of the document and 
scoping with town staff, including 
additional suggested content. 

12‐14  $1,400.00 

2. Changes to document format, 
grammatical errors, images, and maps 

14‐16  $1,600.00 

3. Inclusion of recreation and tourism 
content 

3‐4  $400.00 

4. Inclusion of policy documents 
adopted since 2008 

4‐6  $600.00 

5. In‐depth interviews with staff and 
decision makers regarding  
community issues and additional 
content inclusion (policy & project 
recommendations).   

10‐12  $1,200.00 

6. Public meeting presentation #1 
(preparation and presentation) 

16‐20  $2,000.00 

7. SAFEbuilt Studio summary and draft 
content creation 

12‐14  $1,400.00 

8. Public meeting presentation #2 
(preparation and presentation) 

8‐10  $1,000.00 

9. Draft review with staff and Board  8‐10  $1,000.00 

10. Revisions as requested by town staff  2‐4  $400.00 

11. Presentation to Town Board for 
adoption 

4‐6  $600.00 



    Item #6c 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:   Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:    November 3, 2022 
 
RE:    Gate Tag Pilot Program for Chenango and Chapparal Residents 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Gate Study Group is proposing the following Pilot Program: 
 

1) The pilot program will be one year (January 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023) and 
will be reevaluated at the end of the first year 

2) A maximum of 25 tags will be available to Chenango and maximum of 25 tags 
available to Chapparal residents 

3) There will be a $50 yearly fee and $8 one time fee per RFID tag 
4) The Chenango and Chapparal HOAs will be given the tags and will be responsible 

for the management, tracking, distribution of RFID tags and collection of the 
fee’s.  

The Gate Study Group is seeking approval from the Board to move forward with this proposal.  
If approved, Staff will update the Gate Policy. 

 



                                                    Item #6d 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:    Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:   Kathleen Schmitz, Town Clerk 
 
DATE:    November 3, 2022   
 
RE:    MFSD Funds for Youth Programs 

 
DISCUSSION: 

The Town of Foxfield, which recently received $7,222.68 as a result of a sharing amount provided under 

the terms of the Metropolitan Football Stadium District Act, must allocate the funds to Youth Activity 

Programs.  As a reminder, there was no definition or scope provided under the act.  The Town 

conducted a survey to obtain community input on possible uses.  The survey was designed to gage 

desire on what areas of interest are most beneficial. 

RESULTS: 

There we 80 total responses, with 11 respondents indicating a wiliness to volunteer for certain activities.   

 

Community Suggestions: 

 Apply the funds to the 4th of July parade/picnic and pay for children’s activities/entertainment 

 Small playground 

 Soccer field 

 Shelter and bench for school bus stops 

 Mental health counselors made available 

 Children’s bike race 

 Support the Westernaires 

 Art activities, sustainability 

 Knitting, crocheting, and sewing classes 

 



                                                    Item #6d 

Survey question responses: 

 

 

 
 

 




